
 

Eastleigh House 
Upper Market Street 
Eastleigh SO50 9YN 

 
 

Monday, 5 September 2022 
 
 

EASTLEIGH LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE 
will meet on 

Tuesday, 13 September 2022 
beginning at 

7:00 pm 
in the 

Rooms 11/12/13, Eastleigh House, Upper Market Street, Eastleigh, SO50 9YN 

 
 
TO: Councillor Alex Bourne (Chair) 
 Councillor Paul Bicknell (Vice-Chair) 
  

Councillor Steve Beer 
Councillor Bhavin Dedhia 
Councillor Wayne Irish 
Councillor Darshan Mann 
 

Councillor Tanya Park 
Councillor Cameron Spencer 
Councillor Sara Tyson-Payne 
 

 
Staff Contacts: Nikki Dunne, Democratic Services Officer, 02380 688298  

Email:nikki.dunne@eastleigh.gov.uk  Please email 
Democratic.Services@eastleigh.gov.uk to register to speak 
before the meeting. 
 

 Guy Riddoch, Local Area Manager Tel: 023 8068 3369; Email: 
guy.riddoch@eastleigh.gov.uk 

 
 

JOANNE CASSAR 
Executive Head of Governance 

 

 
Copies of this and all other agendas can be accessed via the Council's website  
as well as in other formats. 

 
Members of the public are invited to speak on general items at the start of the meeting, 
and on individual agenda items at the time the item is discussed.  To register please 
contact the Democratic Services Officer above. 
 
Please be aware that Eastleigh Borough Council permits filming, sound recording and 
photography at meetings open to the public, and Councillors will be using tablet devices to 
access committee papers. 
 

1

https://meetings.eastleigh.gov.uk/


AGENDA 
 

1.   Apologies  
 

2.   Declarations of Interest  
 
Members are invited to declare interests in relation to items of business on the 
agenda.  Any interests declared will be recorded in the Minutes. 
 

3.   Minutes (Pages 5 - 12) 
 
To consider the Minutes of the meeting held on 7 June 2022. 
 

4.   Public Participation  
 

5.   Chair's Report  
 

6.   Air Quality Report (Pages 13 - 48) 
 

7.   Planning Appeals  
 
The Legal Services Manager to report:- 
 
(a) that the following appeals have been lodged:- 
  

Land rear of 74-76 Desborough Road, Eastleigh. SO50 5LP  
 
Appeal against the Council’s construction of replacement building on three 
floors to provide 3no. 1 bedroom & 1no. 2 bedroom flats. (F/21/91388) 
 

 
 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
Tuesday, 15 November 2022 at 7:00 pm 
In the Oak Suite, Holiday Inn, Leigh Rd, 

Eastleigh SO50 9PG 
 

 
Your Council’s electronic news service - e-news  - 
 
Register your email address free with the Council and keep up to date with what’s 
happening in the Borough.  Simply select your topics and we will send you email updates 
with news as it happens including new Council Jobs, What’s On, Recycling, Transport plus 
lots more.  
 

2

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews


1 
 

 

OWEASTLEIGH LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE 
 

Tuesday, 7 June 2022  (7:00 pm – 8:30 pm) 
 
PRESENT: 
 
Councillor Bourne (Chair); Councillors Bicknell, Beer, Irish, Mann, Park 
and Tyson-Payne 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Dedhia and 
Spencer 
 

________________________________________ 
 

RESOLVED ITEMS (SUBJECT TO QUESTIONS ONLY) 
 

36. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 
A local resident raised concerns about a lack a response to a query he 
had raised at a previous meeting regarding the lack of air quality data on 
the Council’s website and queries as to when the analyser would be 
repaired.  The resident was also concerned that an Air Quality report had 
not been brought to this meeting.  The Chair informed the resident that the 
analyser had been repaired and he would raise the data issue with 
officers.  The Chair was also disappointed that there was not an Air Quality 
report for this meeting. 
 
The same resident complained about weeds growing on Cherbourg Road. 
He understood that the Borough Council were only contracted to provide 
one weed spray treatment on behalf of Hampshire County Council, but 
they did not spray where cars were parked.  The Chair responded that he 
had contacted the Executive Head of Neighbourhood Services who had 
passed it on to the Streetscene Manager to see where Cherbourg Road 
fitted into the programme. 
 
The resident also highlighted concerns that bins had not been taken away 
by Direct Services, as had been requested, and residents were still storing 
bins in back service roads.  Many properties were flats where planning 
permission stated that a bin store should be provided but they had never 
been built.  The Chair responded that the bins appeared to be on private 
property rather than highway, but he would raise the matter with Direct 
Services. 
 

37. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
Councillor Wayne Irish declared a personal interest in agenda item 8 as a 
member of the Parochial Church Council. 
 
Councillor Paul Bicknell also declared a personal interest as a member of 
the Working Group. 

3

Agenda Item 3



2 
 

 

 
38. MINUTES 

 
RESOLVED - 
 
That the Minutes of the meeting held on 30 March 2022 be confirmed 
and signed by the Chair as a correct record. 
 

39. CHAIR'S REPORT 
 
The Chair gave the following report: 
 
Community Meal 

 
He was proud to help out at the community meal in town last week which 
was arranged by the Asian Welfare and Community Association (AWCA).  
An amazing 400 meals were served to local residents, workers and 
shoppers. The most amazing curry was served along with sandwiches and 
wraps and all for free due to the generosity of the AWCA. 
 
Paddling pool opening dates 
 
The hugely popular paddling pool re-opened for the bank holiday 
weekend, and he was pleased to say that Places Leisure had agreed to 
keep it open for a week longer, closing at the end of the first week of the 
autumn school term. This was in the hope that we would see a repeat of 
the warm weather we have had over the past couple of years at this time. 
 
Town centre improvements 
 
Plans were progressing well for a range of public realm improvements 
across the town centre. Starting today with 50 hanging baskets, and next 
week with the installation of public art on the glass roof of the colonnades. 
This would be followed in July by 40 new planters and associated seating, 
and new overhead lighting and floor art in Leigh Road Precinct. 
 
Town Centre Toilets 
 
Staying with the town centre, the Council were coming to the end of the 
Bus Station toilet refurbishment project, and they would be re-opening in 
the latter half of June. They would be a dramatic improvement over the old 
ones, and the Chair really hoped the community would like them. 
 
Bandstand  
 
The Bandstand has also had a makeover, with just the masonry to still to 
be painted. The contractors had cleaned the roof, repaired and repainted 
the timber, upgraded the lighting and painted the metalwork. It was now 
ready for the summer programme of bandstand concerts and other events 
through the summer. 

4



3 
 

 

 
Events 
 
Events were restarting after the recent Covid affected summers. Some 
dates for the dairy included: 

 Eastleigh Unwrapped – 11 to 12 June 

 Circus Wonderland at the Passfield Avenue Fair Ground – 13 to 17 
July 

 Eastleigh Mela – 24 July 

 Stephens Funfair – 5 to14 August 
 
Aviary in Bloom and Waste Amnesty 
 
Aviary in Bloom would take place on the 24 June and the Bulky Waste 
Amnesty later in September. 
 
Community garden 
 
The Chair had seen pictures of the wonderful flower beds made by the 
Mens shed and on the 25t June these flower beds would be ready to fill 
with soil and plants. 
 

40. PRESENTATION ON PLANNING GUIDELINES 
 
The Principal Planning Officer gave a short presentation on guidelines that 
had to be considered when determining planning applications; particularly 
issues that could, and could not, be taken into account.  This was set 
against the broader policy framework. 
 

41. PLANNING APPLICATION - 67 FALCON SQUARE, EASTLEIGH, SO50 
9JF - F/21/92120 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Executive Head of Planning 
and Economy (Agenda item 7) to sever land, demolish outbuilding and 
erect a pair of semi-detached 2 bed houses (F/21/92120). 
 
The Committee was advised that there were no additional consultee 
responses received and no additional representations received. 
 
RESOLVED - 
 
To grant permission subject to adjustments to recommended 
conditions: 
 
1 new condition in relation to trees: 

 
The existing tree in the north east corner of the rear amenity space 
for dwelling 1 and the tree in south east corner of the rear amenity 
space for dwelling 2 shall be retained. 
 

5



4 
 

 

Reason - To retain and protect the existing trees which form an 
important part of the amenity of the locality. 
 
Amended wording to condition 6: 
 
No development shall start until details of a sustainable drainage 
system, including details for the sustainable disposal of surface 
water and disposal of foul sewerage, have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the local planning authority. The details shall 
include a timetable for its implementation and a management/ 
maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development [including the 
arrangements for adoption by any public body or statutory 
undertaker, or any other arrangements to secure the effective 
operation of the sustainable drainage system throughout its lifetime. 
The system shall be implemented and thereafter managed and 
maintained in accordance with the approved details. 

 
Reason: To ensure satisfactory drainage for the development. 
 
[NOTES: (A) one local resident spoke in opposition to the scheme with 
concerns regarding outlook and privacy, departure from policy, vehicular 
access during construction and the lack of condition to maintain the 
access route; (B) the developer spoke in support of the application which 
would provide 2 much needed 2 bed dwellings that were in keeping with 
the local area and replaced a dilapidated outbuilding and overgrown 
garden; and (C) the Committee expressed concerns about the state and 
width of the access road, potential loss of trees, removal of sewage from 
the site, waste collections, pedestrian access and, access for those with 
mobility issues.]  
 

42. PLANNING APPLICATION - NEIGHBOURHOOD SQUARE, HIGHWOOD 
AVENUE, NORTH STONEHAM PARK, EASTLEIGH - F/22/92964 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Executive Head of Planning 
and Economy (Agenda item 8) concerning the External permanent public 
art installation in the form of a clock utilising real-time bus arrivals data and 
coloured LED lighting, mounted to a slim mast or pole (full height 5.652 
metres) (F/22/92964). 
 
The Committee were updated that there had been no objection from 
Southampton Airport. 
 
RESOLVED –  
 
That permission be granted subject to the recommended conditions. 
 

6



5 
 

 

 
43. APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES 

 
The Committee considered the report of the Democratic Services Manager 
(Agenda Item 9) concerning appointments to regulatory panels and 
outside bodies.  
 
RESOLVED –  
 
(1) the nominations for 2022/23 municipal year appointments to 

regulatory panels and other groups as set out below were 
approved; and 

 

Regulatory Panels Councillor nominations for 22-23 

Licensing – to deal with issues 
not covered by the Licensing Act 
2003 or the Gambling Act 2005 

 

All members of the Committee to 
be appointed to a pool from 
which any three can be selected. 

Licensing Panels as appointed 
by full Council for the purposes 
of the Licensing Act 2003 or the 
Gambling Act 2005 

Cllr Bourne 
Cllr Irish 
Cllr Park 

Other Groups  

Eastleigh Borough Council/Test 
Valley Liaison Group 

Councillor Irish 

Shopwatch Councillor Tyson-Payne 

Eastleigh Museum Joint 
Management Committee 

Councillors Irish, Park and 
Bicknell  

 
 
(2) That the Eastleigh Local Area Committee make appointments 

to the following Outside Bodies for the 2022/23 municipal year: 
 

i. Age Concern, Eastleigh – Councillor Irish 
ii. Asian Elders, Culture and Welfare Organisation–Councillor 

Mann 
iii. Barton Peveril/Eastleigh College Liaison Group – 

Councillors Bicknell, Park and Spencer 
iv. Lakeside Country Park Users Group – Councillor Bicknell  
v. Pavilion on the Park – Councillors Irish and Spencer 
vi. The Hub – Councillor Beer 
vii. University of Southampton (Wide Lane Sports Facilities – 
User Advisory Group) – Councillor Irish 

7



6 
 

 

 
44. FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT REPORT 

 
The Committee considered a report by the Local Area Manager (Agenda 
Item 10) setting out recommendations for expenditure from the 
Committee’s revenue budget and developer contributions. 
 
RESOLVED - 
 
That the following recommendations were approved: 
 
(1) £7,000 is allocated for public art on the town centre colonnades 

from developers’ contributions; 

(2) £8,000 is allocated for repairs to a footbridge in Fleming Park 
from developers’ contributions; 

(3) £6,000 is allocated to the town centre toilet improvement 
project from developers’ contributions;  

(4) £20,000 is allocated to the Hub Tennis Courts improvements 
from developers’ contributions, subject to approval by the 
developer; 

(5) £7,000 is allocated to the North Stoneham Park events space 
and kick-about area from developers’ contributions; 

(6) £15,000 is allocated to the Litter Bin Reserve from developers’ 
contributions; 

(7) £8,000 is allocated for a repair to the stream bank at Oaklands 
from developers’ contributions;  

(8) £5,000 is allocated for hanging baskets in the town centre from 
revenue budget; and 

(9) A new Cemetery Genealogy Search fee is introduced from 1 
July 2022. 

 
[NOTES: (A) A member of the public queried how much of the Welcome 
Back Fund had not been spent, whether Bishopstoke would be 
contributing to the costs of the tennis courts and would the 
Kickabout/Event Space be transferred to the Parish Council and (B) The 
Local Area Manager responded that the Bishopstoke, Fair Oak and Horton 
Heath Local Area Committee had been asked in the past about the 
transferring aspects of the Recreation Ground but had declined and the 
event space could be transferred to the parish if they wished to accept it in 
the future and that officers were already exploring a range of options for 
transfer.] 

8



7 
 

 

 
45. PLANNING APPEALS 

 
The Legal Services Manager reported: 
 
(a) that the following appeals had been lodged: 
  

20 Kenilworth Gardens, Eastleigh, SO40 4PT 
 
Appeal against the Council’s refusal of planning permission to carry 
our works on a tree protected by a tree preservation order. 

  
(b) that the following appeals had been dismissed: 
  

143 Passfield Avenue, Eastleigh, SO50 9NH 
 
Appeal against the Council’s refusal of planning permission for the 
erection of a single wheelchair user dwelling (Category M4(3) 
Building Regulations, 2021) to the rear of 143-145 Passfield 
Avenue, Eastleigh, SO50 9NH, together with associated access. 

 
 
RESOLVED - 
 
That the report be noted. 
 

9



This page is intentionally left blank



EASTLEIGH LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE  

Tuesday, 13 September 2022  

AIR QUALITY UPDATE 

Report of the Senior Pollution Control Officer  

 

Recommendation(s) 

It is recommended that the Eastleigh Local Area Committee note:   
 
(1) the update to the air quality measurements for Eastleigh in 2021 (and 2022 to 

date); and 

(2) progress made against the Air Quality Action Plan. 

 

Summary 
 
This report provides an update to the Eastleigh Local Area Committee (ELAC) on the state 
of air quality and progress in implementing the Eastleigh Borough Council Air Quality 
Action Plan. It covers the period to the end of July 2022 and includes recent data from 
monitoring stations in the Eastleigh Local Area and an update on the Eastleigh Air Quality 
Management Area Action Plan 

Statutory Powers 
 
Environment Act 1995 Part IV Section 83(2)  

The Air Quality Standards Regulations 2010 

 

Strategic Implications  

1. The causes and consequences of poor air quality, and the action needed to 
tackle it, relate to many of the Council’s corporate objectives: Health and 
Wellbeing, Environment, Economy & Housing.  While this issue cuts across 
portfolios, the lead is taken by the Cabinet Member for Transport as part of the 
Council’s ‘Tackling Congestion’ objective.  This recognises that many 
interventions relate to Transport, and interventions designed to reduce 

congestion will often also improve air quality. 

2. National statutory air quality duties derive from negative impacts on health and 
wellbeing, especially for the very young and old and people with existing 

11

Agenda Item 6



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

health conditions, even at pollution levels lower than statutory exceedance 
levels. 

Introduction 

3. Air Quality Management Areas (AQMAs) must be declared where pollutant 
concentrations are found to be at risk of exceeding national objective levels, 
which are shown in Appendix 2.  Once declared, AQMAs must have an 
associated Air Quality Action Plan (AQAP) which contains measures aiming to 
bring levels of air pollution under the objective values. 

4. The four AQMAs in Eastleigh Borough are covered by the Borough-wide 
AQAP 2020 – 2025 which was adopted in February 2020.  Two of these are 
located in the Eastleigh Local Area, Eastleigh AQMA No. 1 (A335) in the 
centre and Eastleigh AQMA No. 2 (M3) passing through the south west and 
bordering the western boundary (see Appendix 1 for map).  They were both 
declared due to a risk of exceedance of the annual objective for nitrogen 
dioxide (NO2). 

Air Quality Monitoring Results 

5. Monitoring across the Eastleigh Local Area is carried out by 
two principle methods: 

- Diffusion tubes measure NO2 and provide monthly values. 

- Three continuous monitoring stations measure NO2 with higher 
accuracy and time resolution, allowing them to show changes as 
they happen during the course of the day.  Particulate matter (PM) 
of two sizes is also measured at one of these stations. 

6. Air quality monitoring data is presented in Appendix 2 and covers up to the 
end of July 2022.  Where gaps in the data are seen a short explanation of the 
reason is provided.  Results are verified through independent data ratification 
by Imperial College London which has not yet been completed for 2022 
therefore this is only an estimate for the current year.  It shows that the annual 
objective levels have not been exceeded at the continuous monitoring sites in 
2021.  Finalised results for 2022 which can be put into context with long term 
trends will be provided in the next report.  A comparison of the 2021 data 
collected for 3 diffusion tube locations, Southampton Road, Leigh Road / Pluto 
Road and Leigh Road J13 is included.  This shows that in the majority of 
months, and for the year to date overall, concentrations are lower in 2021 than 
the average for 2018 – 2020 suggesting that an overall decreasing trend will 
be continued. Despite this, concentrations recorded so far show there is still a 
risk of exceeding the annual objective level at Southampton Road 1 and Leigh 
Road Junction 13. 

7. An issue with the monitoring cabinet at Southampton Road has resulted in the 
loss of over 10 months of data for 2021 at this location, and a further 6 months 
of data for 2022.  After a leak which occurred during heavy rainfall in August 
2020, the monitoring equipment was removed to be dried and inspected for 

12



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

damage.  While no problems were identified, the equipment was not 
reinstalled until the cabinet could be replaced as a repeat of this incident 
would have the potential to cause extensive damage.  Following the 
reinstallation of the equipment an undiagnosed fault with a sampling line led to 
further issues with data collection which were not resolved until the beginning 
of July 2022. Routine sampling at adjacent diffusion tube locations has been 
carried out throughout this period to ensure compliance with our statutory 
requirements. Data from this site will be treated in line with guidance provided 
by DEFRA. 

Air Quality Action Plan 

8. Progress against each of the ELAC relevant actions in the Borough-wide 
AQAP is shown in Appendix 3, with some of these discussed in more detail 
below. 

9. The Low Emission Taxi Scheme, funded by a bid to the DEFRA Air Quality 
Grant Programme, was extended in August 2021 to bring the requirements in 
line with those in Southampton.  It now includes grants for EURO VI diesel 
vehicles, if they are for 5-8 passengers or are wheelchair accessible.  
Following this change the scheme was directly advertised again to every 
Eastleigh taxi licensee with this information, as the industry starts to recover 
after lockdown.  As a result four further grants were approved in the period 
August to November 2021. The scheme is currently administered by SCC by 
their licensing team, however as all grant monies for their area have been 
allocated they are looking to withdraw from this role, they are currently in 
discussions with Defra about whether this can be passed to EBC for the 
remaining grant money to be allocated In further progress related to private 
hire vehicles, the Administration Committee approved a change to the 
licencing conditions in November 2021, so that from January 2022 new diesel 
vehicles will no longer be licenced unless they are of EURO VI standard. 

10. The DEFRA funded project aimed at reducing emissions, in particular of 
particulate matter, from domestic burning has delivered a campaign aimed at 
bonfires over the summer and autumn of 2021.  This is run by The 
Environment Centre and includes awareness raising by; messaging, leaflets, 
posters and social media along with press articles and direct engagement 
such as attending events and visiting community groups.  In Eastleigh these 
visits have included breathe easy groups, gardening and allotment groups, 
and retailers that sell firewood.  The campaign was adapted for winter 2021-
22 to include a focus on cleaner alternatives to solid fuels. Currently the 
project team are working on common messaging for the partner authorities to 
use when engaging with complaints of smoke from wood burning. 

11. In March 2022 we were successful in obtaining further DEFRA funding in the 
last round of the Air Quality Grant Programme.  The project is for a 
combination of communications campaigns and schools projects, supported 
by provision of active travel infrastructure.  The work in schools is to be 
delivered by Sustrans, with EBC staff in the pollution and communications 
team co-ordinating associated campaigns. Initial project meeting is arranged 
with Sustrans in early September 2022. 

13



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

 

Financial Implications 

12. Funding sources for individual actions are shown in the table in Appendix 3 
and include grant applications and Section 106 Agreements as well as 
existing budgets and available resource. 

13. Any actions identified in the new AQAP that require additional funding for 
delivery will be taken to the relevant Local Area Committee (LAC) or Cabinet 
for approval.  Where possible Eastleigh Borough Council will work in 
partnership to deliver these and will take every opportunity to 
secure additional funding that is made available through grant funds or 
securing developers contributions from Section 106 Agreements. 

Risk Assessment 

14. The AQAP will ensure that the Council takes a managed approach to air 
quality by identifying the most effective actions and targeting priority locations. 
Progress against the AQAP will be reported annually and the actions reviewed 
and updated when necessary to ensure they remain relevant to Council 
priorities and activities. 

Equality and Diversity Implications 

15. The Equality Act is relevant to the decision in this report as it relates to 
addressing an issue that, although it has an impact on all residents, can 
disproportionately affect the most vulnerable in society such as children, 
people with health issues and areas of social deprivation.  An Equality Impact 
Assessment (EqIA) has been carried out and was submitted with the 
AQAP.  In summary the EqIA shows that the Council has made efforts to 
engage those groups which are most affected by poor air quality and taken 
into account their concerns as part of the development of the plan.  The aim of 
the AQAP is to improve air quality across the Borough, this will benefit 
everyone but particularly those groups which air pollution has the biggest 
impact upon.  In this way, the AQAP is working to reduce inequality and 
adverse impacts on vulnerable groups. 
 

Climate Change and Environmental Implications 
 

16. The AQAP supports work in the Climate and Environmental Emergency 
Strategy and Action Plan and many actions are relevant to both areas of 
work.  

17. The AQAP aims to improve air quality across the Borough, particularly in local 
areas where air quality does not meet national objective levels.  Poor air 
quality has significant impact on the local environment and public health and 
in many cases air quality improvements are also positive for climate 
change.  Conflicts can arise however, where action in one area has a 
detrimental effect on the other, therefore it’s important to consider how to 

14



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

achieve the maximum benefit.  In this way the AQAP will contribute towards 
the environmental targets set out in the Climate and Environmental 
Emergency Strategy. 

Conclusion 

18. This report provides an update on monitoring for the Eastleigh Area, however 
it should be noted that 2022 results have not yet been ratified therefore this is 
only an indication of the year to date. 

19. Eastleigh Borough Council continues to work towards delivering 
improvements in air quality and the AQAP sets the Council’s programme of 
work for this. 

 

NEIL SCOTT 
SENIOR POLLUTION CONTROL OFFICER 

 
Date: 18 August 2022 
Contact Officer: Neil Scott 
Tel No: 023 8068 8304 
e-mail: neil.scott@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Appendices Attached:  

1- AQMA & Sampling Point Map 
2- 2021 Air quality data for ELAC 
3- Progress against AQAP measures 

 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D 

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information. 

* Background Papers - None. 
 

15



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 – Map of Eastleigh AQMAs and sampling points 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Eastleigh AQMA No.1 (A335) in green shading 

and Eastleigh AQMA No.2 (M3) in purple shading 

17



 

 

 

18



Sampling Points 
BEL – Belmont Road 
BR2 – Bishopstoke Road 2 
CR – Campbell Road 
CR3 – Campbell Road 3 
CR4 – Campbell Road 4 
CA(15) – Chestnut Avenue 
CC – Chestnut Close 
DD – Dove Dale 
HG – Hadleigh Gardens  
LR13 – Leigh Road / Junction 13 
LRPR – Leigh Road / Pluto Road 
MC – Medina Close 
MS – Mill Street 
NH – Nuffield Hospital 
OX – Oxburgh Close 
PA – Passfield Avenue 
PC – Porteous Crescent 
SRAN(17) – Southampton Road Analyser 
SR1 – Southampton Road 1 
SR2 – Southampton Road 2 
SSQ – Sparrow Square 
SC – Steele Close 
TP – The Point 
TW – Twyford Road 
WA – Woodside Avenue 
 

19



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2 –Air Quality Data for ELAC 

2021 

Nitrogen Dioxide (Continuous analysers) 

Site Pollutant 
Air Quality 
Objective 

Measured As Value/Exceedances* 
Objective 
Achieved* 

Southampton 
Road** 

NO2 

40 µg/m-3 Annual Mean n/a n/a 

200 µg/m-3 (not 
to be exceeded 
more than 18 

times per year) 

Hourly Mean n/a n/a  

The Point NO2 

40 µg/m-3 Annual Mean 22 µg/m-3 Yes 

200 µg/m-3 (not 
to be exceeded 
more than 18 

times per year) 

Hourly Mean 0 Exceedances Yes 

Steele Close NO2 

40 µg/m-3 Annual Mean 20 µg/m-3 Yes 

200 µg/m-3 (not 
to be exceeded 
more than 18 

times per year) 

Hourly Mean 0 Exceedances Yes 

*Figures not given data capture too low 
 

Nitrogen Dioxide (Diffusion tubes for selected locations) 

Site Pollutant 
Air Quality 
Objective 

Measured As Value*** 
Objective 

Achieved*** 

Southampton 
Road 1 

NO2 40 µg/m-3 Annual Mean 

39 µg/m-3 Yes 

Leigh Road / 
Pluto Road 

27 µg/m-3 Yes 

Leigh Road / 
Junction 13 

32 µg/m-3 Yes 

Belmont 
Road 

20 µg/m-3 Yes 

Hadleigh 
Gardens 

16 µg/m-3 Yes 

 
PM (Continuous analyser) 

Site Pollutant 
Air Quality 
Objective 

Measured As Value/Exceedances* 
Objective 
Achieved* 

Southampton 
Road** 

PM10 

40 µg/m-3 Annual Mean n/a n/a 

50 µg/m-3 (not to 
be exceeded 
more than 35 

times per year) 

24 Hour 
Mean 

n/a 

n/a 

PM2.5 25 µg/m-3 Annual Mean n/a n/a 

*Figures not given data capture too low 
 
 

21



 
 
Note about Southampton Road analyser and compliance with Annual Target an hourly target for 
nitrogen dioxide. 
 
Because of the time with no analyser in the cabinet, and then with the sampling issues after 
reinstallation there is insufficient data to report the annual average or if any exceedances of the 
hourly limit may have occurred. 
 
With respect to the ‘likely’ compliance with the annual limit value at the Southampton Road analyser 
location and the number of exceedances of the hourly limit, we would draw attention to the annual 
diffusion tube value given above for Southampton Road 1, SR1. This site is located close to the 
analyser site and routinely measures slightly higher levels of nitrogen dioxide. The data above shows 
that the annual limit value in 2021 was met at SR1, from which we are reasonably satisfied that the 
Analyser site would also have complied in 2021. With regard to exceedances of the hourly limit 
value, we can refer to the advice given to local authorities by Defra in section 7.91 the LAQM 
Technical Guidance (TG16) where it is stated that at roadside locations primarily impacted by road 
traffic emissions, that exceedances of the hourly limit for nitrogen dioxide are unlikely where the 
annual average is less than 60ug.m3. As the annual average measured at SR1 in 2021 was 39ug/m3 
this can be taken as good indication that exceedances of the hourly limit were unlikely to have 
occurred. 
 
Particulate Matter, PM10 and PM2.5 
 
Currently data is only available for particulate matter for the end of 2021, September onwards. This 
is due to the time while the equipment cabinet was being removed and replaced and reconnecting 
power supplies. Whilst this is unfortunate, the Air Quality Management Area for Eastleigh was not 
declared for particulate matter. A review of the data collected for the years preceding, 2018 to 2020, 
shows annual average from 22 - 23ug/m3, compared to annual target of 40ug/m3. Exceedances of 
the 24hourly limit of 50ug/m3, have only been recorded on 6 occasions over the three years, the 
current target value allows for 35 exceedances per annum. On this basis we would not anticipate 
annual averages for 2021 to differ significantly from previous values, nor for the 24 hour limit. 
 
 
 
** Please note this site has only been intermittently operational from October 2021 until July 2022 
at present only PM data is available 
*** Please note that values have been calculated for January – November 2021 only and have had 
an estimated bias adjustment applied, so should be used as an indication only. 

22

https://laqm.defra.gov.uk/documents/LAQM-TG16-April-21-v1.pdf
https://laqm.defra.gov.uk/documents/LAQM-TG16-April-21-v1.pdf


Nitrogen Dioxide (Continuous Analysers) 
 
Displayed as hourly averages 
Red line = Annual average objective level 
Blue dashed line = Hourly average objective level 
 

 

The Point 

Data gaps of over 24 hours 
16 Oct – 25 Nov: Due to a leak in the filter housing causing the analyser to sample incorrectly, fixed by an officer site visit. 
 

23



 

Steele Close 

Data gaps of over 24 hours 
1 – 28 April: Due to a leak in the filter housing causing the analyser to sample incorrectly, fixed by an officer site visit. 

 

24



Nitrogen Dioxide (Diffusion Tubes) 
 

 
 
Selected diffusion tube sites across ELAC 
  

25



PM10 (Continuous Analyser) 
 
Displayed as 24 hour averages 
Red dashed line = Annual average objective level 
Blue dashed line = 24 hour average objective level 
 

 

Southampton Road 

Data gaps of over 24 hours: 
1 January – 01 September: Due to a leak in the cabinet resulting in substantial water ingress, the analysers were removed while a cabinet 
replacement was organised. 
 

  

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

01/01/2021 29/01/2021 26/02/2021 26/03/2021 23/04/2021 21/05/2021 18/06/2021 16/07/2021 13/08/2021 10/09/2021 08/10/2021 05/11/2021

P
M

1
0

(µ
gm

-3
)

26



PM2.5 (Continuous Analyser) 
 
Displayed as hourly averages 
Red dashed line = Annual average objective level 
Grey dashed line = World Health Organisation air quality guideline annual average 
 

 
 

Southampton Road 

Data gaps of over 24 hours: 
1 January – 05 October: Due to a leak in the cabinet resulting in substantial water ingress, the analysers were removed while a cabinet replacement 
was organised. 

 
 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

01/01/2021 29/01/2021 26/02/2021 26/03/2021 23/04/2021 21/05/2021 18/06/2021 16/07/2021 13/08/2021 10/09/2021 08/10/2021 05/11/2021

P
M

2
.5

(µ
gm

-3
)

27



Comparison of 2021 monthly diffusion tube values with 2018 – 2020 average at 3 locations 
 

 
 

 
 

 

28



2022 
 
Year to date only reported 
 

Site Pollutant 
Air Quality 
Objective 

Measured As Value/Exceedances* 
Objective 
Achieved* 

Southampton 
Road** 

NO2 

40 µg/m-3 Annual Mean n/a n/a 

200 µg/m-3 (not 
to be exceeded 
more than 18 

times per year) 

Hourly Mean n/a n/a  

The Point NO2 

40 µg/m-3 Annual Mean 22 µg/m-3 Yes 

200 µg/m-3 (not 
to be exceeded 
more than 18 

times per year) 

Hourly Mean 0 Exceedances Yes 

Steele Close NO2 

40 µg/m-3 Annual Mean 19 µg/m-3 Yes 

200 µg/m-3 (not 
to be exceeded 
more than 18 

times per year) 

Hourly Mean 0 Exceedances Yes 

*Figures not given data capture too low 
 
 

Site Pollutant 
Air Quality 
Objective 

Measured As Value*** 
Objective 

Achieved*** 

Southampton 
Road 1 

NO2 40 µg/m-3 Annual Mean 

37 µg/m-3 Yes 

Leigh Road / 
Pluto Road 

26 µg/m-3 Yes 

Leigh Road / 
Junction 13 

33 µg/m-3 Yes 

Belmont 
Road 

19 µg/m-3 Yes 

Hadleigh 
Gardens 

15 µg/m-3 Yes 

 
 

Site Pollutant 
Air Quality 
Objective 

Measured As Value/Exceedances* 
Objective 
Achieved* 

Southampton 
Road** 

PM10 

40 µg/m-3 Annual Mean n/a n/a 

50 µg/m-3 (not to 
be exceeded 
more than 35 

times per year) 

24 Hour 
Mean 

n/a 

n/a 

PM2.5 25 µg/m-3 Annual Mean n/a n/a 

*Figures not given data capture too low 
 
*** Please note that values have been calculated for January – August 2021 only and have had an 
estimated bias adjustment applied, so should be used as an indication only

29



Nitrogen Dioxide (Continuous Analysers) 
 
Southampton Road not reported for nitrogen dioxide or particulate matter 
 
Displayed as hourly averages 
Red line = Annual average objective level 
Blue dashed line = Hourly average objective level 
 

 
 

The Point 

Data gaps of over 24 hours = None 
 

30



 
 

Steele Close 

Data gaps of over 24 hours = 26/622 00:00 – 30/6/22 15:00 Faulty valve replacement 
 

31



Nitrogen Dioxide (Diffusion Tubes) 
 

 
 
Note – unratified data 
 

32



Appendix 3 – Progress against AQAP measures  
 
Measure 
No. 

Measure Category Classificati
on 

Year 
Measure 
Introduce
d 

Estimated / 
Actual 
Completion 
Year 

Organisation
s Involved 

Funding 
Source 

Key 
Performance 
Indicator 

Progress to Date Comments / 
Barriers to 
Implementation 

ENV1.1 Monitor pollutant 
concentrations within 
AQMAs and across the 
Borough, including NO2 
and PM 

Other Other 2010 2025 EBC EBC / 
Developer 
Contribution
s / DEFRA 
AQ Grant 
2010-11 

>85% data 
capture for 
each calendar 
year 

Monitoring ongoing, both with 
automatic analysers and 
diffusion tubes.  Soton Rd 
experienced prolonged data 
losses due to delays resiting 
equipment and technical 
matters - sample line / comms / 
power supply, 2021 into 2022. 
See Section 3 for details and 
results. 

Data available at 
www.eastleigh.my-
air.uk 

ENV1.2 Undertake focussed 
sampling exercises to 
monitor pollutant 
concentrations across 
the Borough in areas of 
community concern 

Other Other 2020 2022 EBC EBC / 
Developer 
Contribution
s 

Establish 
prioritisation 
process for 
study areas 
 
Complete 3 
studies 

6 months of monitoring 
completed in two separate 
study areas requested by the 
community.  Results reported 
to relevant area committees. 

- 

ENV1.3 Complete an upgrade of 
monitoring equipment, to 
include: 
- replacement of existing 
analysers 
- addition of analysers to 
expand range of 
pollutants monitored 
- relocation of monitoring 
stations 
- installation of new 
monitoring locations 

Other Other 2019 2023 EBC EBC / 
Developer 
Contribution
s 

Increase data 
capture for 
each calendar 
year 
 
Increase 
range of 
pollutants 
monitored to 
include PM2.5 
and ozone 
 
Add 1 new 
continuous 
monitoring 
location 

First phase of implementation 
complete, consisting of new 
analysers at Southampton 
Road and The Point.  Upgrade 
at Southampton Road includes 
new monitoring of PM2.5.  
Further phases planned for 
2021 - 2023. [Delays in roll out 
due to staff recruitment issues] 

Significant water 
ingress at the 
Southampton Road 
site in 2020 meant 
a new cabinet had 
to be purchased 
and installed 
resulting in data 
loss from August 
2020 to October 
2021. 
 
Difficulties securing 
landowners  
permission for 
relocation of site at 
Steele Close will 
result in a delay to 
this stage.  

33



ENV1.4 Carry out trial of 
equipment linking air 
quality and traffic data 

Other Other 2018 2021 EBC / 
External 
Partners 

EBC / 
DEFRA AQ 
Grant 2018-
19 

Trial 
completed 
and findings 
reported to 
DEFRA 

The trial has been expanded to 
include six locations focussed 
around the Station Hill 
roundabout in Eastleigh Town 
and five locations along the 
newest declared section of 
AQMA in Bursledon.  Data from 
these has been collected since 
the beginning of 2021 and is 
being analysed for inclusion in 
the final project report, to be 
completed by the end of 2021. 

Project 
maintenance period 
agreed with DEFRA 
to continue 
monitoring beyond 
the project end and 
investigate long 
term use further. 

ENV2 Work in partnership with 
other Councils and key 
groups 

Policy 
Guidance 
and 
Development 
Control 

Regional 
Groups Co-
ordinating 
programme
s to develop 
Area wide 
Strategies 
to reduce 
emissions 
and improve 
air quality 

2012 2025 EBC / other 
Hampshire 
authorities 

EBC Attend 4 
meetings per 
year of the 
Hampshire Air 
Quality sub-
group 

Hants AQ sub-group meetings 
were on hold during 2020 and 
restarted in July 2021.  
Partnership working, on 
projects such as the solid fuel 
burning campaign (see 
measure HS3) continued 
throughout. 

Meetings 
recommenced 
March 2022. At 
meeting 17/8/22 
proposal to 
restructure the 
group with more 
senior input and 
focussing on Air 
Quality /  Climate 
Change  synergies. 

ENV3 Promote the use of 
electric vehicles by 
investigating incentives 
and developing a 
network of publicly 
available electric vehicle 
charge points across the 
Borough in both public 
and business locations 

Promoting 
Low 
Emission 
Transport 

Procuring 
alternative 
Refuelling 
infrastructur
e to 
promote 
Low 
Emission 
Vehicles, 
EV 
recharging, 
Gas fuel 
recharging 

2012 2025 EBC / HCC / 
External 
Partners / 
Developers 

EBC / HCC 
/ OLEV / 
External 
Partners / 
Developer 
Contribution
s 

Increase 
number of 
publicly 
available EV 
charging 
points 
 
Collect data 
on total 
number of 
kWh used 

As of July 2022 8 new Electric 
vehicle charging points have 
been installed, including an 
ultra fast 150kW charger at 
Places Leisure, (along with 
22kW charger). Channon and 
Chestnut Retail Parks have two 
chargers each, as does 
Romsey Road Car Park, these 
consist of a 22kW and a 50kW 
chargers, both of which can 
charge two cars at once. 
Usage has grown sharply form 
around 1000kWh in April to 
7000kWh by July. The most 
popular charger is the ultrafast 
at Places Leisure. The 
charging provision suppliers 
now looking to increase 
chargers at these sies and at 
other potential locations in the 
Borough. 

- 

34



A pilot of 28 on street charging 
points in Eastleigh, consisting 
of 24 bollard and 4 streetlight 
charge points, were installed in 
March 2021.  
 
The planned Eastleigh Mobility 
Hubs (see measure ELAC8) 
may include e-car club 
vehicles.  

ENV4 Consider the use of 
green infrastructure and 
planting to improve the 
local environment 

Other Other 2012 2025 EBC / 
Developers 

EBC / 
Developer 
Contribution
s 

Planting 
considered in 
associated 
with public 
realm 
improvements 

Consultation on ‘Trees and 
Development Supplementary 
Planning Guidance’ carried out 
June/July 2021. 
 
The Climate and Environmental 
Emergency Action Plan 
includes a tree planting 
programme. 

Awaiting 
confirmation of 
policy following 
Local Plan 
adoption. 

TR1 Create a walking and 
cycling strategy to 
promote and encourage 
travel by these methods 

Promoting 
Travel 
Alternatives 

Other 2019 2022 EBC EBC Completion of 
strategy 

The  strategy due to go to 
consultation at the end of 
August 2022.   Bike Back 
Better campaign carried out 
over social media June - 
August 2022, to encourage 
cycling post Covid lock down, 
this showed a small increase in 
people cycling on a weekly 
basis of 6.6%.  

Many of the 
comments from 
Bike Back Better 
respondents 
focused on the 
need for better / 
safer cycling 
infrastructure. 

TR2.1 Continue to improve and 
extend the walking 
network in line with the 
new walking and cycling 
strategy, including 
running 
pedestrianisation events 

Promoting 
Travel 
Alternatives 

Promotion 
of walking 

2012 2025 EBC / HCC / 
Developers 

EBC / HCC 
/ Developer 
Contribution
s / 
Reopening 
High Streets 
Safely Fund 

Increase 
number of 
pedestrian 
improvement 
schemes 
completed 

EBC is has adopted the 
placemaking principles and set 
up a Town Centre Working 
Group. HCC working on a 
movment strategy for Eastleigh 
which will go to public 
consultation.  

 

35



TR2.2 Improve and extend the 
cycle network in line with 
the new walking and 
cycling strategy, 
including: 
- maintenance of existing 
cycle paths 
- addition of new cycle 
routes 
- promotion of electric 
bicycles 

Transport 
Planning and 
Infrastructure 

Cycle 
network 

2012 2025 EBC / SCC / 
HCC / 
Developers / 
Transforming 
Cities 

EBC / SCC / 
HCC / 
Developer 
Contribution
s / 
Transformin
g Cities 
Fund 

Increase 
length of cycle 
path available 
 
Add publicly 
available 
charging 
points for 
electric bikes 

Transforming Cities funding 
received March 2020 covers a 
variety of cycle infrastructure, 
see measures BIFOHH1, 
CFH2, BHH10 and ELAC7 for 
more details. 

- 

TR3 Run campaigns aimed at 
reducing vehicle 
emissions, including: 
- reducing the number of 
single occupancy cars 
- reducing idling of 
stationary vehicles 

Public 
Information 

Other 2020 2025 EBC EBC Run 2 
campaigns 
 
Increase 
number of 
people 
engaged 

Planned for implementation in 
2022. See TR1 

Delayed due to lack 
of resources. 

TR4.1 Work in partnership with 
bus companies to: 
- improve routes and 
services 
- increase patronage 
- develop a multi 
operator ticketing system 

Transport 
Planning and 
Infrastructure 

Bus route 
improvemen
ts 

2012 2022 EBC / HCC / 
Bus Service 
Operators 
Grant / Bus 
Companies / 
Transforming 
Cities 

EBC / HCC Maintain 
number of 
supported 
services 
 
Increase bus 
patronage 

HCC have consulted on 
proposed changes to funding of 
public transport, EBC have 
responded advising that the 
most vulnerable users should 
be protected. Xelabus have 
given notice that they will be 
cancelling all but a small 
number of their routes, 
effective November 2022. EBC 
working with HCC and other 
providers to arrange alternative 
provision, though this is 
unlikely to be a like for like 
replacement. 

- 

36



TR4.2 Work with rail operators, 
network rail and the 
community rail 
partnership to: 
- improve routes and 
services 
- improve facilities for 
multi modal journeys 
- increase patronage 
- minimise the impact of 
emissions from rail 
transport 

Transport 
Planning and 
Infrastructure 

Public 
transport 
improvemen
ts-
interchange
s stations 
and 
services 

2012 2025 EBC / Rail 
Operators  

EBC / SWR 
Customer & 
Communitie
s 
Improvemen
t Fund 
2020-22 

Increase train 
patronage 

EBC have sent a letter of 
support for application for 
improvements at Hedge End 
station (lift provision), also 
wayfinding project at Hamble 
Stn BHH4.1. 

- 

TR4.3 Monitor progress of 
Clean Bus Technology 
Fund and implications 
for EBC 

Vehicle Fleet 
Efficiency 

Promoting 
Low 
Emission 
Public 
Transport 

2018 2020 SCC OLEV Clean 
Bus 
Technology 
Funding 

Increase 
proportion of 
buses classed 
as EURO VI 
or better to 
100% 

Retrofitting has been 
completed for all service buses, 
with emissions recorded in the 
source apportionment study 
(measure ELAC2) and DEFRA 
low cost monitoring project 
(measure ENV1.4).  EBC has 
supported a SCC bid to the 
ZEBRA fund for 32 further 
electric buses which would 
travel through the Eastleigh 
AQMA to the depot.  

This measure is 
completed and so 
has been removed 
in the latest update 
of the AQAP. 

TR4.4 Engage with companies 
running non-service 
buses (school buses, 
learner drivers, rail 
replacement etc.) to 
explore upgrade options 

Vehicle Fleet 
Efficiency 

Promoting 
Low 
Emission 
Public 
Transport 

2021 2023 EBC / Bus 
Companies 

Not 
Identified 

Increase 
proportion of 
buses classed 
as EURO VI 
or better to 
100% 

- This measure has 
been added as a 
follow on from 
TR4.3.  Timescale 
may be adjusted 
when finalised plan 
has been identified. 

TR5.1 Promote the Low 
Emission Taxi Incentive 
scheme to encourage 
uptake 

Promoting 
Low 
Emission 
Transport 

Taxi 
emission 
incentives 

2017 2023 EBC / SCC / 
External 
Partners 

DEFRA AQ 
Grant 2018-
19 

Increase 
number of 
grants 
awarded 

Initial discussions held with 
SCC and Electric Blue in March 
2020 on involving EBC taxis in 
an EV trial scheme. 
 
Scheme extended in August 
2021 to include grants for 
EURO VI diesel vehicles, if 
they are for 5-8 passengers or 
are wheelchair accessible.  
Advertising including this new 
information sent directly to 
every Eastleigh taxi licensee as 
industry starts to recover after 

SCC have spent 
the proportion of 
the fund allocated 
to them and no 
longer wish to 
administer the fund, 
however they are 
currently in 
discussion with 
Defra as to whether 
the outstanding 
amount in respect 
of Eastleigh area 
can be transferred 

37



lockdown, resulting in  four 
grants from Aug to Nov 2021. 

to us to administer. 

TR5.2 Implement a requirement 
for taxis to meet 
specified EURO 
standards in order to be 
licensed in EBC 

Promoting 
Low 
Emission 
Transport 

Taxi 
Licensing 
conditions 

2020 2025 EBC / SCC EBC 100% of taxis 
meet specified 
EURO 
standards 

Licencing conditions changed 
so that as of 01/01/2022 new 
diesel vehicles will not be 
licenced unless they are of 
EURO VI standard. 

This measure will 
follow TR5.1 and is 
planned for 
implementation in 
2025. 

TR6 Promote and expand car 
clubs 

Alternatives 
to private 
vehicle use 

Car Clubs 2020 2025 EBC / 
External 
Partners 

EBC / 
Developer 
Contribution
s 

Increase 
number of car 
club locations 
to 6 

The planned Eastleigh Mobility 
Hubs (see measure ELAC8) 
may include e-car club 
vehicles. EBC working on 
changes to car club to 
encourage operator to promote 
the scheme more actively. 

- 

TR7 Increase availability of 
bicycle hire schemes 

Promoting 
Travel 
Alternatives 

Promotion 
of cycling 

2020 2023 EBC / 
External 
Partners 

EBC / 
External 
Partners / 
Transformin
g Cities 

Increase 
availability of 
hire schemes 

While providing a public hire 
scheme is on hold, EBC has 
procured E-cargo bikes for loan 
to local businesses, see 
measure EC2.3.  
The planned Eastleigh Mobility 
Hubs (see measure ELAC8) 
may include bike/scooter hire 
provision.  

Scheme arranged 
with Yo Bikes in 
2019 aborted when 
they pulled out of 
the area in August 
2019. 

TR8 Consult on incentivising 
ownership of low 
emission vehicles 
through differential 
parking charges 

Traffic 
Management 

Emission 
based 
parking or 
permit 
charges 

2020 2023 EBC EBC Consultation 
completed 

Measure aims to consult on the 
introduction of such a scheme 
and following this plans will be 
made for any implementation.  

Plan to be 
formulated in 2022. 

TR9 Use low cost sensor 
study to understand 
relationships between 
traffic movements and 
air quality to influence 
future road design 

Traffic 
Management 

UTC, 
Congestion 
managemen
t, traffic 
reduction 

2018 2022 EBC EBC / 
DEFRA AQ 
Grant 2018-
19 

Availability of 
air quality and 
traffic data in 
4 locations to 
be used as 
evidence 

Project completed and report 
made to Defra. Final iteration of 
sensors and traffic counters 
providing more reliable data, 
but did not meet all project 
outcomes. Continuing to collect 
data outside of project scope 
and use this information to 
engage with HCC on traffic 
management. 

Completed 

38



TR10 Engage with HCC and 
HE on their highways 
improvements schemes, 
such as the SMART 
motorways project, to 
ensure they support our 
work on air quality 

Traffic 
Management 

UTC, 
Congestion 
managemen
t, traffic 
reduction 

2012 2025 HCC / HE EBC / HCC 
/ HE 

2 meetings 
per year with 
highways 
authorities 

Meetings not held since Covid, 
due to HCC Health Team work 
commitments. HCC highways 
representative has left and not 
been replaced. Responded to  
LTP4 consultation 

Work through 
County grouping 
see ENV2 

HS1.1 Improve public 
awareness of air 
pollution levels and air 
quality issues through 
the EBC website 

Public 
Information 

Via the 
Internet 

2012 2020 EBC EBC Increase 
availability of 
information on 
website 
 
Increase 
webpage hits 

Website improvements 
implemented. 

This measure is 
completed and so 
has been removed 
in the latest update 
of the AQAP. 

HS1.2 Increase uptake of air 
quality alert service to 
help people manage 
their health in relation to 
air pollution 

Public 
Information 

Other 2015 2023 EBC EBC Increase 
number of 
alert 
subscriptions 

There are currently 95 active 
airAlert subscriptions in EBC. 

Potential to be 
included as part of 
measure HS1.3.  
 
May be affected by 
plans to retender 
data management 
contracts and 
promotion will be 
carried out after the 
new contract begins 
in June 2022. 

HS1.3 Run regular public 
awareness campaigns to 
provide information and 
advice, and to promote 
services available 

Public 
Information 

Other 2012 2025 EBC EBC Campaigns 
run annually 

Clean Air Day plans discussed 
as part of Hants AQ sub-group 
(see measure ENV2). 

Affected by lack of 
resource. 

HS1.4 Integrate AQ into our 
Health & Wellbeing 
engagement campaigns 

Public 
Information 

Via the 
Internet 

2020 2025 EBC EBC Increase 
number of 
people 
reached by 
campaigns 

Engagement via the Clean 
Burn project with local 
communities and groups, 
addressing air pollution and 
health 

 

HS1.5 Work with local health 
professionals, health 
awareness groups and 
social prescribers to 
disseminate air quality 
information, particularly 
about airAlert 

Public 
Information 

Other 2020 2025 EBC EBC Increase 
number of 
people 
reached. 
Increase 
number of 
airAlert 
subscriptions 

Engagement via the Clean 
Burn project with local 
communities and groups, 
addressing air pollution and 
health 

Affected by lack of 
resource. 

39



HS2.1 Annually engage with 
schools in the borough 
for travel planning and to 
run clean air campaigns 
and local monitoring 
exercises 

Promoting 
Travel 
Alternatives 

School 
Travel Plans 

2015 2025 EBC / SCC EBC / SCC / 
Access 
Fund 

Increase 
number of 
schools 
participating 
per year 

Schools work includes online 
resources and competitions for 
schools, linked to Clean Air 
Day.  Promotion of active travel 
in schools also ongoing. 
 
Following the end of the 
Access Funding schools work 
decreased, with HCC travel 
planning staff still running clean 
air projects but these are not 
currently focussed in any 
Eastleigh schools.  EBC 
successful in bidding for 
DEFRA Air Quality Fund in 
October 2021,  to carry out 
projects specifically in 
Eastleigh schools. Project 
intiation in September 2022 to 
run until July 2023 

Affected by 
pandemic related 
school closures. 

HS2.2 Work with HCC to 
include EBC schools in 
expansion of Facilitate at 
least three 'School 
Streets' events per year, 
organising temporary 
road closures outside 
schools  

Traffic 
Management 

Other 2020 2022 EBC / HCC EBC / HCC 3 events held 
per year 

HCC are planning a trial of 
these events for 3 schools in 
autumn 2021 but none in EBC 
have been selected.  Following 
this it is hoped the scheme will 
be expanded across the county 
and EBC have registered 
interest in participating. 

Events planned by 
EBC for 2020 
postponed due to 
pandemic related 
school closures 

HS3 Provide information and 
advice on the use of 
solid fuel burners 
through joint project with 
neighbouring authorities 

Public 
Information 

Other 2020 2024 EBC / SCC / 
NFDC / WCC 

DEFRA AQ 
Grant 2019-
20 

Project 
completed 
and findings 
reported to 
DEFRA 

Communications campaign in 
progress, involving regular 
promotion of messages across 
a range of platforms and in 
conjunction with partner 
authorities to provide 
consistency for residents 
across a wider area.  
Messaging is kept up to date 
with the most relevant 
information, adjusted for the 
season and for example 
promoting the change in the 
Domestic Solid Fuel Standards 
Regulations in May 2021.    
  
Additionally, a bid for extra 

Ongoing 

40



funding to extend and expand 
the project was successful with 
funding awarded in March 
2021. 

HOU1.1 Update planning 
guidance to require EV 
charging in new 
developments 

Policy 
Guidance 
and 
Development 
Control 

Air Quality 
Planning 
and Policy 
Guidance 

2020 2023 EBC EBC Updated 
planning SPD 
for air quality 
produced 

- Need to review 
timescale following 
adoption of Local 
Plan 

HOU1.2 Update resident parking 
policies to incentivise 
low emission vehicles 

Promoting 
Low 
Emission 
Transport 

Priority 
parking for 
LEV's 

2020 2023 EBC EBC Parking 
policies 
updated 

- Planned for 2023. 

HOU1.3 Update planning 
guidance to require low 
NOx boilers to be 
installed in new 
developments 

Policy 
Guidance 
and 
Development 
Control 

Air Quality 
Planning 
and Policy 
Guidance 

2020 2023 EBC EBC Updated 
planning SPD 
for air quality 
produced 

- Need to review 
timescale following 
adoption of Local 
Plan 

HOU1.4 Update planning 
guidance to require new 
developments to employ 
use of green 
infrastructure to mitigate 
air quality impacts 

Policy 
Guidance 
and 
Development 
Control 

Air Quality 
Planning 
and Policy 
Guidance 

2020 2023 EBC EBC Updated 
planning SPD 
for air quality 
produced 

- Need to review 
timescale following 
adoption of Local 
Plan 

HOU1.5 Update planning 
guidance to require new 
developments are well 
served with sustainable 
transport facilities, to 
include walking, cycling 
and public transport 

Transport 
Planning and 
Infrastructure 

Other 2020 2023 EBC EBC Updated 
planning SPD 
for air quality 
produced 

- Need to review 
timescale following 
adoption of Local 
Plan 

EC1.1 Update the EBC travel 
plan annually 

Promoting 
Travel 
Alternatives 

Workplace 
Travel 
Planning 

2020 2025 EBC EBC Annual travel 
survey 
completed 
and plan 
updated 

Staff survey was carried out in 
September 2021 and included 
gathering information on travel 
over lockdown and changes in 
behaviour.  An update of the 
travel plan will follow in 2022.  

Survey and update 
not carried out in 
2020 due to Covid-
19 

EC1.2 Increase use of EBC 
pool bikes for staff travel 

Promoting 
Travel 
Alternatives 

Promotion 
of cycling 

2020 2025 EBC EBC Increase 
number of 
pool bike 
users 

Improved pool bike facilities 
and promotion implemented.  
Following the success of this 
the Council is considering 
purchase of a further bike. 
Working to change cycle 
support scheme to include 

Fewer members of 
staff working on site 
has impacted on 
use of these 
facilities and 
purchase of a 
further bike has 

41



electric bicycles. been delayed.  

EC1.3 Update EBCs 
purchasing and 
contractor policies to 
ensure low emission 
options are used 

Policy 
Guidance 
and 
Development 
Control 

Sustainable 
Procuremen
t Guidance 

2020 2022 EBC EBC Procurement 
policy and 
guidance 
updated 

A new procurement officer has 
been appointed and will pick up 
the project, including a review 
of the Councils procurement 
spend, policies, templates and 
guidance. 

Included in the 
Council's Climate 
and Environmental 
Emergency Action 
Plan, with the latest 
update approved at 
Cabinet in June 
2020. 

EC1.4 Upgrade EBC's internal 
fleet to low emissions 
vehicles 

Promoting 
Low 
Emission 
Transport 

Company 
Vehicle 
Procuremen
t -Prioritising 
uptake of 
low 
emission 
vehicles 

2020 2025 EBC EBC / Low 
Emission 
Grant 

Increase 
proportion of 
fleet made up 
of LEVs 

An electric road sweeper and 
RCV are being trialled with the 
aim of phasing into the fleet as 
part of the vehicle replacement 
programme. Over 50 petrol 
powered hand held tools have 
been replaced with electric 
models saving over 1600L of 
fuel in six months. 

- 

EC2.1 Engage with businesses 
in the borough to do 
travel planning 

Promoting 
Travel 
Alternatives 

Workplace 
Travel 
Planning 

2012 2025 EBC / SCC / 
Local 
Businesses 

Developer 
Contribution
s 

Increase 
number of 
businesses 
engaged with 
 
Appointment 
of new Travel 
Planner post 

Majority of funding secured for 
Travel Planner post and 
agreement with SCC in place. 

Awaiting 
confirmation of 
remaining funding. 

EC2.2 Investigate adopting and 
promoting the ECO 
Stars Fleet Recognition 
Scheme to encourage 
local businesses to 
upgrade LGV fleets 

Vehicle Fleet 
Efficiency 

Fleet 
efficiency 
and 
recognition 
schemes 

2020 2025 EBC EBC Increase 
number of 
businesses 
with ECO 
Stars 
accreditation 

- Planned for 2024. 

EC2.3 Work with local 
businesses to encourage 
use of last mile electric 
scheme 

Freight and 
Delivery 
Management 

Other 2020 2025 EBC / 
External 
Partners / 
Local 
Businesses / 
E-Cargo Bike 
Grant Fund 

EBC Number of 
businesses 
using a ‘last 
mile’ scheme  

Successful bid to the E-Cargo 
Bike Fund with SCC now has 
20 bikes  available for loan to 
local businesses.which is 
available for 3.  The scheme is 
working towards a goal of 
loaning to 40 different 
businesses by Sep 2023. By 
July 2022 the project had seen 
6 loans in Eastleigh. 

- 

42



EC3 Support and encourage 
businesses to adopt 
flexible working practices 

Promoting 
Travel 
Alternatives 

Encourage / 
Facilitate 
home-
working 

2012 2025 EBC / Local 
Businesses 

EBC Increase 
number of 
businesses 
engaged with 

- On hold while 
longer term effects 
of changed working 
patterns due to 
Covid-19 are 
established. 

EC4 Work with Southampton 
Airport to minimise the 
impact of their ground 
operations on air quality 

Promoting 
Low 
Emission 
Transport 

Other 2020 2025 EBC / 
Southampton 
Airport 

EBC Updated 
surface 
access 
strategy in 
place 

Planning application approved 
in April 2021 and S106 
agreements are being 
negotiated.  The Council is 
looking to secure contributions 
for public transport 
improvements and 
infrastructure, travel planning, 
pollution monitoring and 
mechanisms to enforce the 
vehicle cap. 

Recently advised 
that legal ruling 
means that JR not 
now possible, so 
work will 
commence on 
these actions 

ELAC1 Upgrade analysers at 
Southampton Road and 
The Point monitoring 
sites 

Other Other 2019 2020 EBC EBC Equipment 
replaced 

New analysers installed at 
Southampton Road and The 
Point.  Significant water ingress 
at the Southampton Road site 
in 2020 meant a new cabinet 
had to also be purchased and 
installed. 

This measure is 
completed and so 
has been removed 
in the latest update 
of the AQAP. 

ELAC2 Conduct further studies 
of fleet make up and 
source apportionment for 
Eastleigh 

Other Other 2015 2022 EBC / 
External 
Consultants 

EBC / 
Developer 
Contribution
s 

Completion of 
study 

Study carried out, main findings 
reported back to LAC and 
results will feed into future air 
quality work.  

This measure is 
completed and so 
has been removed 
in the latest update 
of the AQAP. 

ELAC3 Carry out trial of 
innovative monitoring 
equipment 

Other Other 2018 2021 EBC / 
External 
Partners 

EBC / 
DEFRA AQ 
Grant 2018-
19 

Data collected 
for 1 key 
junction in 
Eastleigh 

Completed See TR3 for details This measure is 
completed and so 
will be removed 
from future updates 
of the AQAP. 

ELAC4 Consider 
pedestrianisation of 
Market Street, initially as 
a temporary event 

Traffic 
Management 

Other 2019 2020 EBC / HCC / 
Reopening 
High Streets 
Safely Fund 

EBC Temporary 
closure event 
organised and 
impact 
assessed 

Pedestriansation of High Street 
and Market Street in Eastleigh 
town centre trialled as part of 
the Council's Covid-19 
response.  Scheme remained 
in place from June 2020 to July 
2021 and the majority of 
responses to a consultation by 
Hampshire County Council 
were positive, with 58% of 
respondents in favour of 

The temporary 
pedestrianisation 
measure is 
completed so has 
been removed in 
the latest update of 
the AQAP and 
replaced by 
measure ELAC4.1. 

43



retaining the scheme for up to 
18 months.  Following the lifting 
of social distancing measured it 
was no longer supported by 
HCC and was removed on 19 
July 2021. 

ELAC4.1 Explore options for 
maintaining elements of 
pedestrianisation in 
Eastleigh Town Centre 

Traffic 
Management 

Other 2021 2023 EBC / HCC EBC Ongoing 
scheme for 
management 
of High Street 
and Market 
Street 
adopted 

See TR2.1 This measure has 
been added in the 
latest update of the 
AQAP as a follow 
on from ELAC4.  
Timescale may be 
adjusted when 
finalised plan has 
been identified. 

ELAC5.1 Install electric vehicle 
charge points to include: 
- Aldi, Chestnut Retail 
Park 
- Romsey Road Car 
Park, Upper Market 
Street 

Promoting 
Low 
Emission 
Transport 

Procuring 
alternative 
Refuelling 
infrastructur
e to 
promote 
Low 
Emission 
Vehicles, 
EV 
recharging, 
Gas fuel 
recharging 

2015 2022 EBC / HCC / 
External 
Partners / 
Developers 

EBC / HCC 
/ External 
Partners / 
Developer 
Contribution
s 

Increase 
number of 
available EV 
charging 
points 

See ENV3 - Arrangements for 
the installation of electric 
vehicle charging points at 
Places Leisure, the Stoneham 
Development, Woodside Lane 
and Aldi continue but there is 
no set installation date yet.  

- 

ELAC5.2 Encourage uptake of 
pilot on street charging 
points and monitor their 
use 

Promoting 
Low 
Emission 
Transport 

Procuring 
alternative 
Refuelling 
infrastructur
e to 
promote 
Low 
Emission 
Vehicles, 
EV 
recharging, 
Gas fuel 
recharging 

2021 2022 HCC HCC / 
OLEV grant 

Increased use 
of EV 
charging 
points 

 
See ENV 3 - An OLEV grant 
was secured along with HCC 
funding for a pilot of 28 on 
street charging points in 
Eastleigh, consisting of 24 
bollard and 4 streetlight charge 
points.  These were installed in 
March 2021 and showed a 
monthly increase in energy 
consumption throughout April 
to June, demonstrating their 
use. 

This measure has 
been added to 
separate ELAC5 
into public and 
residential charge 
points. 

ELAC6 Continue to seek 
approval and funding for 
the Chickenhall Lane 
Link Road 

Transport 
Planning and 
Infrastructure 

Other 2015 2025 EBC / HCC Not 
Identified 

Delivery of 
link road 

- Long term 
aspiration. 

44



ELAC7 Improve and extend the 
cycle network to include 
upgraded cycle routes 
and facilities in Eastleigh 
town centre 

Transport 
Planning and 
Infrastructure 

Cycle 
network 

2021 2023 EBC / SCC / 
HCC / 
Developers / 
Transforming 
Cities 

EBC / SCC / 
HCC / 
Developer 
Contribution
s / 
Transformin
g Cities 
Fund 

Increase 
length of cycle 
path available 
 
Add publicly 
available 
charging 
points for 
electric bikes 

See ENV 3 - The planned 
Eastleigh Mobility Hubs (see 
measure ELAC8)  HCC are to 
draw up feasibility studies for 
the options which will go to 
public consolation this autumn, 
currently looking at Eastleigh 
Town Centre and Airport 
Parkway.  
Eastleigh Town Centre Cycle 
Route will provide a continuous 
cycle route between Parkway 
station and Eastleigh Town 
Centre, via Desborough Road 
on existing quiet streets, 
enabled by improvements to 
crossings, signage and access. 
HCC have allocated funds to 
provide a cycle bridge over the 
railway on Twyford Road 

This measure has 
been added to 
cover Transforming 
Cities projects in 
Eastleigh. 

ELAC8 Create two mobility hubs 
to offer multi-modal 
transport options and 
facilities at key locations 
in Eastleigh 

Promoting 
Low 
Emission 
Transport 

Other 2021 2023 EBC / SCC / 
HCC 

EBC / SCC / 
HCC / 
Developer 
Contribution
s / 
Transformin
g Cities 
Fund 

Mobility hubs 
completed 

See ENV 3 - Planned as part of 
the successful TCF bid, these 
facilities will offer multi-modal 
transport at key locations.  
Options include cycle hire, e-
car club vehicles, e-scooters, 
cycle parking and repair 
equipment.  A consultation was 
carried out as part of a 
feasibilitiy study in Jul/Aug 
2021 to determine the likely 
demand and the locations and 
facilities which would be most 
beneficial.  HCC are assessing 
the responses with more 
detailed plans and procurement 
to follow in 2022 and delivery in 
2023. 

This measure has 
been added to 
cover Transforming 
Cities projects in 
Eastleigh. 

 

45



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	6 Air Quality Report
	AQ Appendix 1
	20220902114739_002033_0003595_ELACSeptember2022Appendix2
	20220902114739_002034_0003596_UpdatedELACSeptember2022Appendix3


